SFC 證監會

SECURITIES AND FUTURES COMMISSION 證券及期貨事務監察委員會

Consultation Paper on Proposed Amendments to the Guidelines for the Exemption of Listed Corporations from Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Disclosure of Interests)

18 June 2014



Table of contents

Foreword	1
Personal information collection statement	2
Consultation paper on proposed amendments to the Guidelines for the Exemption of Listed Corporations from Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Disclosure of Interests)	4
Introduction	4
Background	4
Proposal	5
Reason for proposal	5
Proposed amendments to the Guidelines	6
New Part 2 added – to provide two new categories of exemption under paragraphs 8 to 11	6
Other amendments – miscellaneous or consequential amendments	7
Proposed implementation timetable	8
Consultation questions	8
Seeking comments	8
Appendix – Draft revised Guidelines for the exemption of listed corporations from Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance	
(Disclosure of Interests)	9



Foreword

The Securities and Futures Commission (**SFC**) invites market participants and interested parties to submit written comments on the proposals discussed in this consultation paper, or to comment on related matters that may have a significant impact on those proposals, **by no later than 17 July 2014**. Persons wishing to comment should provide details of any organisation whose views they represent.

Please note that the names of respondents to this consultation paper and the contents of their submissions may be published on the SFC website and in other documents to be published by the SFC. In this connection, please read the Personal Information Collection Statement in this consultation paper. If you do not want your name and/or your submission to be published, please state this when you make your submission.

Written comments may be sent -

By mail to: Securities and Futures Commission

35/F, Cheung Kong Center 2 Queen's Road Central

Hong Kong

By fax to: (852) 2810 5385

By on-line submission to : http://www.sfc.hk/edistributionWeb/gateway/EN/consultation/

By email to : <u>AmendmentsGuidelinesPtXV@sfc.hk</u>

All submissions received before the end of the consultation period will be carefully considered, following which consultation conclusions will be published.

Securities and Futures Commission Hong Kong

18 June 2014



Personal information collection statement

1. This Personal Information Collection Statement is made in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data. It sets out the purposes for which your Personal Data¹ will be used following collection, what you are agreeing to with respect to the SFC's use of your Personal Data and your rights under the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) (**PDPO**).

Purpose of collection

- 2. The Personal Data provided in your submission to the SFC in response to this consultation paper may be used by the SFC for one or more of the following purposes
 - (a) to administer the relevant provisions² and codes and guidelines published pursuant to the powers vested in the SFC;
 - (b) in performing the SFC's statutory functions under the relevant provisions;
 - (c) for research and statistical purposes;
 - (d) for other purposes permitted by law.

Transfer of personal data

3. Personal Data may be disclosed by the SFC to members of the public in Hong Kong and elsewhere, as part of the public consultation on this consultation paper. The names of persons who submit comments on this consultation paper together with the whole or part of their submission may be disclosed to members of the public. This will be done by publishing this information on the SFC website and in documents to be published by the SFC during the consultation period or at its conclusion.

Access to data

4. You have the right to request access to and correction of your Personal Data in accordance with the provisions of the PDPO. Your right of access includes the right to obtain a copy of your Personal Data provided in your submissions on this consultation paper. The SFC has the right to charge a reasonable fee for processing any data access request.

Retention

5. Personal Data provided to the SFC in response to this consultation paper will be retained for such period as may be necessary for the proper discharge of the SFC's functions.

Personal Data means personal data as defined in the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486).

The term "relevant provisions" is defined in section 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 1 to the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) and refers to the provisions of that Ordinance together with certain provisions in the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32), the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance (Cap. 615).



Enquiries

6. Any enquiries regarding the Personal Data provided in your submission on this consultation paper, or requests for access to Personal Data or correction of Personal Data, should be addressed in writing to:

The Data Privacy Officer Securities and Futures Commission 35/F, Cheung Kong Center 2 Queen's Road Central Hong Kong

7. A copy of the Privacy Policy Statement adopted by the SFC is available upon request.



Consultation paper on proposed amendments to the Guidelines for the Exemption of Listed Corporations from Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Disclosure of Interests)

Introduction

- 1. The Securities and Futures Commission (**SFC**) invites comments on proposed amendments to the Guidelines for the Exemption of Listed Corporations from Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Disclosure of Interests) (**the Guidelines**).
- 2. The proposed amendments extend the scope of exemption in the Guidelines to cover interests held by participants of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK or Stock Exchange) or participants of a recognized clearing house who are themselves clearing houses if certain conditions are met. It is envisaged that initially the only entities that will seek exemption under the proposed amendment are a securities trading service company established by Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE) (SPV) and China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited (ChinaClear), the Mainland clearing house, with respect to interests in shares of corporations listed on the Stock Exchange that they acquire through the arrangements under a pilot programme, the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Pilot Programme), for establishing mutual stock market access between Shanghai and Hong Kong.
- 3. The aim of this consultation paper is to solicit comments on the proposed amendments, which are marked up against the current version of the Guidelines and set out in the Appendix.
- 4. Consultation conclusions will be published after the end of the consultation period and after comments have been carefully considered.

Background

- 5. Under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (**SFO**), substantial shareholders (i.e., persons who have an interest in shares comprising 5% or more of the voting shares in a SEHK-listed corporation) and other corporate insiders such as the listed corporation's directors, shadow directors and chief executives, must give notice of their interests in shares of the listed corporation on the occurrence of certain events.
- 6. Under section 309(2) of the SFO, the SFC may, upon application of a corporation, exempt the corporation and any person in relation to that corporation from all or any of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO. In considering an application, the SFC must have regard to the Guidelines published under section 309(1) of the SFO.
- 7. The current Guidelines provide for three categories of circumstances under which an exemption from the disclosure requirements under Part XV may be granted. Category 1 relates to dual-listed corporations that in some cases either have no share trading or only have nominal trading on the Stock Exchange, or in other cases the corporate insiders of such corporations will be subject to overseas statutory disclosure of interest obligations that are comparable to those of Part XV. Category 2 relates to issuers of securities other than shares. Category 3 relates to open-ended corporate form collective investment schemes. All three current categories are entities that are listed or seeking to be listed on SEHK.



8. On 10 April 2014, the SFC and the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) announced the development of the Pilot Programme for establishing mutual stock market access between Mainland China and Hong Kong. The Pilot Programme will operate between SSE, SEHK, ChinaClear and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (HKSCC). Under the proposed arrangements, SSE and SEHK will enable investors in each market to trade eligible shares listed on the other market through local securities firms or brokers. Under a Northbound Trading Link, investors, through their Hong Kong brokers and a securities trading service company to be established by SEHK, will be able to place orders to trade eligible shares listed on SSE by routing orders to SSE. Under a Southbound Trading Link, eligible Mainland investors, through Mainland securities firms and the SPV, will be able to place orders to trade eligible shares listed on SEHK by routing orders to SEHK. Clearing, settlement, custody and nominee services with respect to SEHK-listed securities executed by the SPV will be provided by ChinaClear. The SPV will be admitted as a participant of the Stock Exchange and ChinaClear will be admitted as a participant of HKSCC.

Proposal

9. The SFC proposes to amend the Guidelines by providing two additional categories for exemption - Categories 4 and 5, to cover participants of the Stock Exchange and participants of a recognised clearing house who are themselves clearing houses if certain conditions are met.

Reason for proposal

- 10. Because of the arrangements described in paragraph 8 above, particular as southbound trades will be executed on the Stock Exchange under the name of the SPV and ChinaClear will provide clearing, settlement, custody and nominee services to Mainland investors, the SPV and ChinaClear will each come under the Part XV disclosure obligations if they hold 5% interests (or more) in a SEHK listed corporation.
- 11. Orders placed by exchange participants that are executed on the Stock Exchange are transactions entered into under the name of the exchange participant. Consequently the exchange participant acquires an interest in the securities. Currently, intermediaries who are licensed by or registered with the SFC to conduct Type 1 regulated activity are exempt from the Part XV disclosure obligations for SEHK listed securities if the interests are acquired as agent in the ordinary course of business and the interest is transient (lasting for not more than three business days)³. An exchange participant's interest arising from transactions conducted for a client is no different and should be treated equally. Accordingly it is proposed that a new Category 4 be added to the Guidelines for participants of the Stock Exchange where the interest in SEHK listed securities are acquired as agent in the ordinary course of business and the interest is transient (lasting for not more than three business days). As the SPV will become a participant of the Stock Exchange it will be eligible for exemption under this category.
- 12. With respect to clearing houses, they perform clearing and settlement of transactions and may also provide custody and nominee services to beneficial investors, they therefore come under the Part XV disclosure obligations. Under current law, recognized clearing houses are not subject to the disclosure obligations in Part XV⁴. Where a clearing house becomes a participant of a recognized clearing house to provide clearing and settlement

³ Section 323(1)(i) of the SFO.

Section 323(1)(g) of the SFO.



as well as depository and nominee services for investors in its home market in securities of Hong Kong listed corporations, the position of the overseas clearing house is similar to that of a recognized clearing house. Accordingly it is proposed that a new Category 5 be added to the Guidelines for participants of a recognized clearing house which are themselves clearing houses regulated by a regulator in its home market and the home market regulator has entered into a memorandum of understanding with the SFC. The exemption will only apply to interests in securities of Hong Kong listed corporations that are held by the clearing house and that are incidental to the clearing and settlement services or that are held for beneficial investors. As China Clear will become a participant of HKSCC it will be eligible for exemption under this category.

13. The Pilot Programme is an important step in the opening of the China capital market and will enhance market connectivity between Shanghai and Hong Kong. It will bring various benefits to Hong Kong, including deepening cooperation and communication between the two markets, enhancing the competitiveness of both markets, and reinforcing Hong Kong's position as an international financial centre and offshore renminbi business centre. The proposed amendments are for the purpose of providing a level playing field for entities that perform similar functions in the market to facilitate the implementation of the Pilot Programme.

Proposed amendments to the Guidelines

14. The proposed amendments to the Guidelines are set out in the draft Guidelines in the Appendix. The main amendments proposed are set out in a new Part 2 of the Guidelines. A few revisions have also been made to the existing Guidelines, these are mainly consequential in nature. The proposed amendments can be summarised as follows:

New Part 2 added - to provide two new categories of exemption under paragraphs 8 to 11

- (a) New paragraphs 8 to 11 are added under the new Part 2 to provide for exemptions for participants of the Stock Exchange (Category 4) and participants of recognized clearing houses (Category 5).
- (b) Paragraph 8.1 sets out a new definition for the term "clearing house". The current definition of "clearing house" in Schedule 1 of the SFO is inappropriate as it refers to trades executed on a recognized stock or futures market or a recognized exchange company and is therefore limited at present to the four recognized clearing houses in Hong Kong. The new definition provides a more generic definition of "clearing house" for the purposes of the Guidelines.
- (c) Paragraph 8.2 is added to provide for the new category of exemption for a participant of the Stock Exchange.
- (d) Paragraph 8.3 is added to provide for the new category of exemption for a participant of a recognized clearing house.
- (e) Paragraph 9 is added to clarify that the application in respect of proposed new categories should be directed to the SFC's Corporate Finance Division.
- (f) Paragraph 10.1 is added to provide for the matters the SFC will take into account in deciding to grant an exemption to a participant of the Stock Exchange. Under the proposed amendments, the following matters will be considered:



- (i) the exchange participant must be admitted as a participant of a recognized exchange company in accordance with rules made under section 23 or section 36 of the SFO; and
- (ii) the exemption will only apply to the following interests:
 - the interest is acquired by the exchange participant as an agent for his principal;
 - the principal in the transaction is a person other than a related corporation of the exchange participant;
 - the interest is acquired from a person other than a related corporation of the exchange participant; and
 - the exchange participant has been interested in the shares for not more than 3 business days.
- (g) Paragraph 10.2 is added to provide for the matters the SFC will take into account in deciding to grant an exemption to a participant of a recognized clearing house. Under the proposed amendments, the following matters will be considered:
 - (i) the clearing house must be admitted as a participant of a recognized clearing house in accordance with rules made under section 40 of the SFO:
 - (ii) the clearing house must be regulated by a home regulator who has entered into a memorandum of understanding with the SFC; and
 - (iii) the exemption will only apply to interests in securities of Hong Kong listed corporations that are held by the clearing house that are incidental to the clearing and settlement services or that are held for beneficial investors.
- (h) Paragraph 11 is added to clarify that the SFC will normally consider granting a complete exemption to an application made under Category 4 or 5, subject to its powers and other matters described in paragraph 2 of the Guidelines which includes the power to grant a partial exemption.

Other amendments - miscellaneous or consequential amendments

- (i) Name of guidelines Since the proposed amendments will extend the scope of exemptions to persons other than listed companies, the name of the Guidelines has to be revised.
- (j) Paragraph 2 is revised to provide for the proposed new categories of exemptions for participants of the Stock Exchange (Category 4) and participants of a recognized clearing houses (Category 5).
- (k) New paragraphs 2.2 and 2.3 The explanation of enabling provisions and general qualifications currently set out in paragraphs 2.5 and 2.6 are moved to new paragraphs 2.2 and 2.3 since they apply to the categories for exemption under both parts of the Guidelines.



(I) There are a few other consequential revisions such as renumbering of paragraphs or to reflect changes to SFC personnel.

Proposed implementation timetable

- 15. Pursuant to section 309(1) of the SFO, the SFC is required to consult the Financial Secretary on the proposed amendments to the Guidelines.
- 16. Subject to this public consultation and the consultation with the Financial Secretary under section 309(1), the SFC proposes that the amendments will come into effect upon gazettal of the amended Guidelines.

Consultation questions

- 17. The SFC is seeking comments on the above proposal particularly on the following issues:
 - (a) Do you agree with the proposed amendments to the Guidelines to extend the scope of exemption in the Guidelines.
 - (b) Do you agree with the general criteria for exemption discussed in paragraphs 14(f) and (g) above that the SFC will take into account in deciding whether to grant an exemption.

Seeking comments

18. The SFC welcomes any comments from the public and the industry on the proposals made in this consultation paper. Please submit written comments to the SFC no later than by 17 July 2014. The final proposals and changes to the Guidelines will be published together with the consultation conclusions after careful consideration of comments received.





Draft revised Guidelines for the exemption of listed corporations from Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Disclosure of Interests)

PART XV of the SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE (CAP. 571) (Disclosure of Interests)

Under Section 309 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the Securities and Futures Commission, after consulting the Financial Secretary, publishes these guidelines for the exemption of listed corporations and other persons from all or any of the provisions of Part XV the Securities and Futures Ordinance

Securities and Futures Commission Guidelines for the Exemption of Listed Corporations and Other Persons from Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Disclosure of Interests)

1. <u>Definitions</u>

Terms that are defined in section 308 of the SFO and Schedule 1 to the SFO have the same meaning in these Guidelines. In addition:

"corporate insiders" means substantial shareholders, directors, shadow directors and chief executives of a listed corporation;

"CIS" means collective investment schemes;

"corporate form CIS" means a CIS which takes the form of a mutual fund company or otherwise in corporate form;

"Guidelines" means these guidelines made pursuant to Section 309(1) of the SFO;

"SFC" means the Securities and Futures Commission;

"SFO" means the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571);

"Part XV" means Part XV of the SFO:

"Stock Exchange" means the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and

"substantial shareholder" means a person or corporation who has an interest in shares comprising 5% or more of a listed corporation's relevant share capital.



- 2. Nature and Purpose of these Guidelines for Exemption
- 2.1 Part XV requires the disclosure by corporate insiders of their interests in the securities of listed corporations. Disclosure of information to investors and the market is the cornerstone of a fair and orderly securities market. Disclosure of interests of corporate insiders is an important element of an informed market. Except in limited circumstances, the SFC would not propose to exempt any person a listed corporation and its corporate insiders from the obligation to provide disclosure of interests to the market. Circumstances where the SFC will consider granting an exemption fall into threefive categories. Part 1 of these Guidelines sets out three categories of exemptions for listed corporations (or corporations that are applying for listing) from Part XV. Part 2 of these Guidelines sets out two more categories of exemption for other persons.

Enabling provisions and general qualification

- 2.2 Section 309(2) of the SFO gives the SFC the power to exempt any applicant corporation or any other person in relation to that corporation from all or any of the provisions of Part XV, subject to such conditions as it thinks fit, having regard to the Guidelines. Section 309(2) is the enabling provision for exemptions granted in circumstances falling within Categories 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5.
- 2.3 The Guidelines set out the criteria that the SFC will take into account when deciding whether to grant an exemption. The Guidelines are not exhaustive. They are simply intended to assist applicants in understanding the matters that the SFC will take into consideration when deciding whether to exercise its discretion to grant an exemption.

 They may be modified or varied as circumstances require. Similarly, an exemption, once granted, can be revoked or any conditions attached modified or varied by the SFC as circumstances change.

Part 1

3. Exemptions for listed corporations

Category 1 - Dual listing

2.23.1 For some corporations, either already listed or seeking a listing, the principal share trading market in their securities exists or will exist on a stock exchange other than Hong Kong. In some cases either no share trading or only nominal trading will take place on the Stock Exchange. In other cases the corporate insiders of such corporations will be subject to statutory disclosure of interest obligations in another jurisdiction that are comparable to those of Part XV. Requiring compliance by these corporate insiders with Part XV may result in additional costs without contributing to an informed market for the shares of the relevant corporation.

Category 2 – Issuers of securities other than shares

2.33.2 A corporation that has any of its securities listed on the Stock Exchange is regarded as being listed and its corporate insiders come under disclosure obligations under Part XV even if shares in the corporation are not listed on the Stock Exchange. Requiring compliance by the corporation and its corporate insiders with Part XV may result in additional costs without contributing to an informed market for the securities that are listed.



Category 3 – Open-ended CIS in corporate form

2.43.3 An open-ended CIS, which is in corporate form and listed on the Stock Exchange, is technically a listed corporation under Part XV and its corporate insiders therefore come under the disclosure obligations under Part XV. On the basis that the total number of outstanding shares of an open-ended corporate form CIS is constantly changing, due to the frequent subscription and redemption of shares by investors, requiring compliance by an open-ended corporate form CIS and its corporate insiders with Part XV may result in additional costs without contributing to an informed market for its shares.

Enabling provisions and general qualification

- 2.5 Section 309(2) of the SFO gives the SFC the power to exempt any listed corporation from all or any of the provisions of Part XV, subject to such conditions as it thinks fit, having regard to the Guidelines. Section 309(2) is the enabling provision for exemptions granted in circumstances falling within Categories 1, 2 and 3.
- 2.6 The Guidelines set out the criteria that the SFC will take into account when deciding whether to grant an exemption. The Guidelines are not exhaustive. They are simply intended to assist applicants in understanding the matters that the SFC will take into consideration when deciding whether to exercise its discretion to grant an exemption. They may be modified or varied as circumstances require. Similarly an exemption, once granted, can be revoked or any conditions attached modified or varied by the SFC as circumstances change.
- 34. Applications for an Category 1, 2 and 3 Eexemptions under section 309(2)
- 34.1 Only a listed corporation or corporation applying for listing may apply, in writing, to the SFC for an exemption from Part XV under section 309(2).
- 34.2 An application in respect of Category 1 or Category 2 must be directed to the Corporate Finance Division of the SFC. An application in respect of Category 3 must be directed to the Investment Products Division Department of the SFC.
- 34.3 The applicant, when deciding what matters to include in its written application, should have regard to the Guidelines. The SFC may request additional information or make such enquiries as it considers appropriate when considering any application.
- 34.4 These Guidelines provide for complete or partial exemptions. Exemptions, whether complete or partial, may be made subject to such conditions as the SFC reasonably considers appropriate.
- 5. General Criteria for Category 1, 2 and 3 Eexemptions under section 309(2)
- 5.1 The SFC will take account of the following matters in deciding whether to grant an exemption for corporations with a dual listing (i.e. a Category 1 application):
 - (i) the volume of the applicant corporation's worldwide share turnover (or in the case of a new applicant for listing, the anticipated turnover) that takes place on the Stock Exchange and on any other stock exchange or securities market;
 - (ii) the extent to which an applicant corporation's corporate insiders are subject to statutory disclosure requirements in any other jurisdiction that are comparable to



- those existing in Hong Kong; and
- (iii) the reasons for the applicant corporation listing in Hong Kong including whether it intends raising capital or not.
- 5.2 The SFC will take account of the following matters in deciding whether to grant an exemption for a corporation and its corporate insiders seeking to issue securities other than shares that are to be listed on the Stock Exchange (i.e. a Category 2 application):
 - (i) whether the issuer has raised, or proposes to raise, publicly traded equity capital in Hong Kong;
 - (ii) whether shares of the issuer are traded, or are proposed to be traded on the Stock Exchange;
 - (iii) whether an exemption has previously been given under section 309 for securities that the issuer has issued or proposes to issue and to list on the Stock Exchange;
 - (iv) whether the underlying shares of the securities that it proposes to issue are shares of the issuer or a member of the issuer's group;
 - (v) whether the securities that it proposes to issue are convertible into shares of the issuer or a member of the issuer's group; and
 - (vi) if a related corporation of the issuer is listed on the Stock Exchange, whether the chief executive or any director of the issuer is also the chief executive or a director of such listed corporation.
- 5.3 The SFC will take account of the following matters in deciding whether to grant an exemption for a corporate form CIS that is listed or seeking a listing on the Stock Exchange (i.e. a Category 3 application):
 - (i) the extent to which shares of such CIS can be issued/created without reference or consent from existing holders and, repurchased/redeemed, directly or indirectly, at the request of the holder of such shares (which may be subject to conditions or limitations as customarily or commonly found in open-ended CIS or otherwise acceptable to the SFC), taking into account factors including the dealing frequency, the period required for subscription or repurchase or redemption proceeds to be paid and whether shareholders' approval is required for such issue/creation and/or repurchase/redemption. The SFC will make reference to the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds, which is in force from time to time, in considering whether the above factors are fulfilled; and
 - (ii) whether such CIS is authorised by the SFC under section 104 of the SFO.
- <u>56</u>. Complete Exemption under section 309(2)
- 56.1 When a complete exemption is granted under section 309(2) Part XV, in its entirety, will not apply to the corporation concerned and its corporate insiders in relation to that corporation. Disclosures of interests made by an applicant and its corporate insiders in any other jurisdiction in relation to that corporation will not be required to be filed with



Hong Kong regulatory authorities.

- 56.2 The SFC will take into account all relevant facts and circumstances, including those matters set out in section-paragraph-5 above, in considering an application for a complete exemption.
- 56.3 An applicant for a complete exemption under Category 1 must satisfy the SFC that only a nominal percentage of the average daily volume of its worldwide share turnover does, or is reasonably anticipated to, take place on the Stock Exchange. A nominal percentage will normally be 1% or less of the average daily volume of an applicant's worldwide share turnover. Average daily volume of worldwide share turnover shall be calculated on the basis of share turnover during the twelve month period immediately preceding the date of any application for exemption.
- 56.4 The SFC would not normally grant a complete exemption if the applicant corporation or its predecessor has raised capital, or if the applicant intends to raise capital, in Hong Kong. However, the fact that a corporation raises a pro-rata proportion of its capital in Hong Kong, for example through a rights offering or by way of a professional offering in Hong Kong that was part of a worldwide offering, would not automatically result in revocation of its exemption.
- The SFC would normally consider granting a complete exemption to an application made under Category 3, subject to its powers and other matters described in section paragraph 2 above, which include the power to grant a partial exemption (as described in section 6 paragraph 7 below).
- 56.6 The SFC does not propose to revoke a complete exemption or modify or vary any conditions attached thereto unless there is a material change in circumstances. The SFC will give reasonable notice of its intention to revoke or vary a complete exemption. If, after an application for complete exemption is granted, a corporation's daily volume of share turnover on the Stock Exchange exceeds 1% of worldwide turnover calculated over a 12 month period then the exemption may be varied to a partial exemption, so that the corporation will be required to file any disclosures of interest made in another jurisdiction with the Stock Exchange.

67. Partial Exemption under section 309(2)

- 67.1 When a partial exemption is granted the corporation concerned and its corporate insiders will not be required to prepare registers, maintain records or file with Hong Kong regulatory authorities disclosure of interest reports pursuant to Part XV. An applicant corporation will be required to file with the Stock Exchange any disclosures of interests made in another jurisdiction as soon as is practicable. The Stock Exchange will publish these disclosures in the same way as those it receives from other listed corporations pursuant to Part XV.
- 67.2 Divisions 5, 11 and 12 of Part XV will continue to apply to the applicant corporation and its corporate insiders in the case of a partial exemption. Divisions 5 and 11 of Part XV sets out the powers of the listed corporation and the Financial Secretary to investigate listed corporation ownership and related matters and Division 12 sets out the orders that can be made imposing restrictions on shares and equity derivatives.



- 67.3 The SFC will take account of all relevant facts and circumstances, including those set out at section 4paragraph 5 above, in considering an application for a partial exemption but will take particular account of:
 - (i) The location of the principal trading market in an applicant corporation's securities. An application for a partial exemption is unlikely to be granted if 20% or more of the applicant corporation's average daily worldwide share turnover during a twelve month period immediately preceding the date of the application for exemption takes place on the Stock Exchange.
 - (ii) The nature and scope of any statutory disclosure of interest obligations that apply to an applicant corporation and its corporate insiders other than those imposed by Part XV. A partial exemption from Part XV will not normally be granted to an applicant corporation if no statutory disclosure of interest obligations comparable to those imposed by Part XV apply to its corporate insiders in any other jurisdiction.
- 67.4 The fact that a corporation has or proposes to raise capital in Hong Kong will not prevent it from obtaining a partial exemption from Part XV.
- 67.5 The SFC does not propose to revoke a partial exemption or modify or vary any of the conditions attached thereto unless there has been a material change in circumstances. Except in exceptional circumstances, the SFC will give six months notice to the listed corporation concerned of its intention to revoke a partial exemption.

Part 2

8. Exemptions for other persons

8.1 In this Part:

(i) The term "clearing house" does not have the same meaning as that defined in Schedule 1 to the SFO. In this Part, the term "clearing house" means a financial market infrastructure that provides clearing and settlement services for transactions in securities, futures contracts or other financial instruments. It may also provide custody and nominee services.

<u>Category 4 – Exchange participants of the Stock Exchange</u>

8.2 Orders placed by exchange participants that are executed on the Stock Exchange are transactions entered into under the name of the exchange participant. Consequently the exchange participant acquires an interest in the securities. Currently, intermediaries who are licensed by or registered with the SFC to conduct Type 1 regulated activity are exempt from the Part XV disclosure obligations for SEHK listed securities if the interests are acquired as agent on behalf of principals who are not related corporations in the ordinary course of business and the interest is transient (he has been interested in the shares for not more than three business days)¹. An exchange participant's interest arising from transactions conducted for an unrelated client on the Stock Exchange is no different and should be treated equally even if the exchange participant is not licensed or

Section 323(1)(i) of the SFO.



registered to conduct Type 1 regulated activity.

<u>Category 5 – Clearing houses that are clearing participants</u>

- A clearing house performs clearing and settlement of transactions and may also provide custody and nominee services to beneficial investors. It therefore comes under the disclosure obligations under Part XV. Under current law, recognized clearing houses are not subject to the disclosure obligations in Part XV². Where a clearing house becomes a participant of a recognized clearing house to provide clearing and settlement of transactions as well as depository and nominee services in securities of Hong Konglisted corporations for investors in its home market, the position of the overseas clearing house is similar to that of a recognized clearing house. Accordingly, the overseas clearing house should be treated equally with respect to its disclosure of interest obligations.
- 9. Applications for Category 4 and 5 exemptions
- 9.1 An application in respect of Category 4 or 5 should be directed to the SFC's Corporate Finance Division.
- 10. General Criteria for Category 4 and 5 exemptions
- 10.1 The SFC will take account of the following matters in deciding whether to grant an exemption to an exchange participant of the Stock Exchange (i.e. Category 4):
 - (i) the exchange participant must be admitted as a participant of a recognized exchange company in accordance with rules made under section 23 or section 36 of the SFO; and
 - (ii) the exemption will only apply to the following interests:
 - the interest is acquired by the exchange participant as an agent for his principal;
 - the principal in the transaction is a person other than a related corporation of the exchange participant;
 - the interest is acquired from a person other than a related corporation of the exchange participant; and
 - the exchange participant has been interested in the shares for not more than 3 business days.
- 10.2 The SFC will take account of the following matters in deciding whether to grant an exemption to a clearing participant that is itself a clearing house (i.e. Category 5):
 - (i) the clearing house must be admitted as a participant of a recognized clearing house in accordance with rules made under section 40 of the SFO;
 - (ii) the clearing house must be regulated by a home regulator who has entered into a

Section 323(1)(g) of the SFO.



memorandum of understanding with the SFC; and

- (iii) the exemption will only apply to interests in securities of Hong Kong listed corporations held by the clearing house that are incidental to the clearing and settlement services or are held for beneficial investors.
- 11. Complete exemption under section 309(2)
- 11.1 The SFC would normally consider granting a complete exemption to an application made under Category 4 or 5, subject to its powers and other matters described in paragraph 2 above, which includes the power to grant a partial exemption. The SFC does not propose to revoke a complete exemption unless there is a material change in circumstances. The SFC will give reasonable notice of its intention to revoke or vary a complete exemption.

Martin Wheatley Ashley Ian Alder
Chief Executive Officer
Securities and Futures Commission

31 October 2008 [] 2014